
From: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS
To: Zuck, Penelope - AMS
Subject: CDA reports
Date: Friday, June 16, 2017 12:18:28 PM
Attachments: NP7162PZA 2005-4 Witness Audit AOF HP CDA 060717.doc

NP7162PZA NOP 2005 Checklist 060417.doc

Hi Penny,
I and sending the NOP 2005 Checklist and the Witness Audit Checklist for your review and input. I
completed the following areas of NOP 2005 Checklist.
Section I
Tables 1, 2, 3, 4
Tables 8, 9
 
I’ll send the Review Audit Checklist as soon as I am done.
Thanks lots!
 
Rebecca
 
Rebecca Claypool
Accreditation Manager 
USDA | NATIONAL ORGANIC PROGRAM
1400 Independence Ave SW| 2649-S | Washington DC 20250
Desk: 202-350-5706 | Cell: 

Want to receive email updates? Subscribe to the Organic Insider
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Total lbs DM from pasture = 5,423,142 
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 48.14% 
 
DRY cows DMD = 27.69 
DMI from pasture = 40.04 
Days grazed = 25 
Total lbs TMR fed = 1,336,360 
Total lbs DM fed w/ pasture = 1,232,094 
Total lbs DM fed w/o pasture = 741,913 
DM lbs from pasture = 490,181  
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 49.34 
 
June: 
LACTATING cows DMD = 55.72 
DMI from pasture = 48.32% 
Days grazed = 30 
Total lbs TMR fed = 22,105,742 
Total DM lbs fed = 11,999,969.  (includes some extra hay fed occasionally).  
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 48% 
 
DRY cows DMD = 27.69 
DMI from pasture = 32.16% 
Days grazed = 27 
Total lbs TMR fed = 1,553,640 
Total lbs DM fed w/ pasture = 1,637,697 
Total lbs DM fed w/o pasture = 1115535 
DM lbs from pasture = 522,162 
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 50.40% 
 
July: 
LACTATING cows DMD = 58 
DMI from pasture = 31.86% 
Days grazed = 15 
Total lbs TMR fed =  
Total lbs DM fed = 6,548,047 (includes some extra hay fed occasionally).  
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 46.74% 
 
DRY cows DMD = 27.69 
DMI from pasture = 49.44% 
Days grazed = 31 

(b) (4)

(b) 
(4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)
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Total lbs TMR fed = 1,320,105 
Total lbs DM fed w/ pasture = 2,027,130 
Total lbs DM fed w/o pasture = 1025011 
DM lbs from pasture = 1,002,119 
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 46.85% 
 
Aug: 
LACTATING cows DMD = 60.70 
DMI from pasture = 33.56% 
Days grazed = 31 
Total lbs TMR fed = 25,923,000 
Total lbs DM fed = 13,714,092 (includes some extra hay fed occasionally).  
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 46.27% 
 
DRY cows DMD = 27.69 
DMI from pasture = 36.74% 
Days grazed = 31 
Total lbs TMR fed = 2,255,100 
Total lbs DM fed w/ pasture = 2,150,516 
Total lbs DM fed w/o pasture = 1,353,155 
DM lbs from pasture = 797,361 
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 43.36% 
 
Sept:  
LACTATING cows DMD = 61.01 
DMI from pasture = 30.84% 
Days grazed = 23 
Total lbs TMR fed = 29,686,125 
Total lbs DM fed = 10,763,729 (includes some extra hay fed occasionally).  
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 45.60% 
 
DRY cows DMD = 27.69 
DMI from pasture = 30.63% 
Days grazed = 14 
Total lbs TMR fed = 2,678,664 
Total lbs DM fed w/ pasture = 1,073,071 
Total lbs DM fed w/0 pasture = 745011 
DM lbs from pasture = 328,060 
Avg # of cows =  
TMR DM% = 44.57% 
Stopped grazing on Sept 14th, 2016.  

(b) 
(4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)
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1. PLANNING AND SCHEDULING OF THE ASSESSMENT  
 
 Contact the NOP Accreditation and International Activities (AIA) Division Accreditation 

Manager and determine the scope of the assessment and the onsite assessment plan. 
 
 Send an email using the appropriate template to schedule the onsite assessment. This should 

be done as early as possible. Planning of foreign assessments should start at least 6 months 
before the anticipated assessment date. Scheduling of domestic assessments should start no 
later than 3 months before the anticipated assessment date. 

 
 Once the assessment date is scheduled with the accredited certifying agent (certifier), select 

the satellite office(s) and witness audit site(s) to be visited during the assessment. Check the 
AIA database and/or previous audit checklists for operations where witness inspections and 
review audits took place to avoid visiting the same operations. 

 
 After the assessment sites and onsite schedule have been finalized, complete the audit plan, 

cost estimate, and appropriate letter regarding the assessment. Send these documents to the 
NOP Lead Auditor for review and approval. 

 
 Send the above information via email using the appropriate template. Remember to include 

attachments in the email and copy all of the personnel listed on the letter. 
 

2. PRE-ASSESSMENT ACTIVITIES 
 
 Verify that the LPS-109 Application for Service is on file and is the current version. This 

does not apply to the pre-decisional assessment. 
 

 Verify that form TM-10CG Application for Accreditation is on file and is the current version. 
This applies to initial and renewal applications only.  

 
 Obtain and review the most recent copy of program documentation from the company. 

 
Title of 
documentation: 

 

Date or revision 
number of 
documentation: 

 

 
 Review the previous audit report. 
 Review the previous corrective actions report, as applicable. 
 Review previous notices of noncompliance issued to the certifier.  
 Receive approval to conduct the assessment activity by obtaining a signed copy of the audit 

plan and cost estimate from the client.   
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3. ONSITE ASSESSMENT ACTIVITIES 
 

 Opening Meeting 
 

The purpose of the opening meeting is to confirm the assessment plan, provide a 
short summary of how the assessment activities will take place, confirm 
communication channels, and provide an opportunity for the client to ask 
questions.   

 
 Introduction of participants and their roles. 

 
 Confirmation of assessment objectives, scope, and criteria. Compliance 

assessment of CDA and WA and Review Audit of Aurora Org. Dairy. Goal is to 
review and evaluate compliance with the Livestock certification.  

 
 Confirmation of assessment timetable and any other relevant arrangement.   
 
 Review the assessment plan. Have there been any changes since it was approved? 

 No   
 Yes - What are the changes? 

 
 Review the program documentation. Have there been any changes since the last 

assessment? 
 No   
 Yes - What are the changes? 

 
 Have findings from previous assessments been addressed? (if applicable)   

 Yes   
 No 

 
 Methods and procedures to be used to conduct the assessment. 

 
 Confirmation of auditee’s representative and formal communication channels. 
 
 Confirmation that auditee will be kept informed of assessment process during the 

assessment. 
 
 Confirmation that the resources and facilities needed by the assessment team are 

available. 
 
 Confirmation of confidentiality matters. 
 
 Confirmation of relevant work safety, emergency, and security procedures for the 

assessment team. 
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CERTIFIER OVERVIEW NARRATIVE: 
 
Organizational Structure: 
 
The Colorado Department of Agriculture (CDA) organic program is a state government 
certification program based in Broomfield, CO. It was initially accredited to the USDA National 
Organic Program (NOP) as an authorized certification agent on October 15, 2002. At the time of 
the audit, CDA provides organic certification for 214 operations in Colorado or contiguous land 
areas: crops (141), wild crops (1), livestock (10) and handling (86). The CDA is not accepting 
new clients for certification due to a moratorium imposed by the Colorado legislature (on going 
since 2015 midterm audit). The moratorium was imposed because the legislature determined that 
the organic program resources (staffing) was at maximum capacity given its current client 
numbers and budget. CDA does not certify any grower groups. There are no satellite offices, 
although staff inspectors (12) are distributed throughout the state and perform inspections for 
multiple CDA programs. The CDA organic program is currently administered by the Division 
Director with the assistance of an Organic Certification Specialist/Program Assistant. The 
Organic Program Manager recently left the program, and CDA plans to post the position by the 
end of June 2017.  

 
Certification Process: 
 
CDA has an unannounced inspection policy that requires a minimum of 5% unannounced 
inspections are conducted annually, which was achieved in 2015 and 2016. CDA also has a 
policy requiring a minimum 5% residue testing annually, which was achieved in 2015 (and in 
2013, 2014). Five percent was not met in 2016. Each year, CDA identifies priority items for 
sample collection; in 2017, the sampling focus is for buffer hay/alfalfa.  
 
Summary of Witness Inspections and Review Audits Conducted: 
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§ 205.501(a)(15)(i) 
Submit to the Administrator a copy of: Any notice 
of denial of certification (§ 205.405); notification of 
noncompliance; notification of noncompliance 
correction; notification of proposed suspension or 
revocation; and notification of suspension or 
revocation (§ 205.662) simultaneously with its 
issuance. 
Table of Contents 
§ 205.405(c)(3) 

   

Yes – as 
documented in  
§ 205.405(c)(3) of 
the checklist and 
Table 4, the 
certifier submitted 
all notifications to 
the Administrator 
as required. 
 
No – as 
documented in  
§ 205.405(c)(3) of 
the checklist and/or 
Table 4, the 
certifier did not 
submit all 
notifications to the 
Administrator as 
required. 

§ 205.501(a)(15)(ii) 
Submit to the Administrator a list, on January 2 of 
each year, including the name, address, and 
telephone number of each operation granted 
certification during the preceding year. 
Table of Contents 

    

§ 205.501(a)(16) 
Charge applicants for certification and certified 
production and handling operations only those fees 
and charges for certification activities that it has 
filed with the Administrator (to include any fees 
charged for unannounced inspections). 
Table of Contents 
Also see Fee Schedule 

    

§ 205.501(a)(17) 
Pay and submit fees to AMS in accordance with  
§ 205.640. 
Table of Contents 
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§ 205.501(a)(18) 
Provide the inspector, prior to each onsite 
inspection, with previous onsite inspection reports, 
and notify the inspector of its decision regarding 
certification of the operation site inspected by the 
inspector and of any requirements for the correction 
of minor noncompliances. 
Table of Contents 

    

§ 205.501(a)(19) 
Accept all production or handling applications that 
fall within its area(s) of accreditation and certify all 
qualified applicants, to the extent of its 
administrative capacity to do so without regard to 
size or membership in any association or group. 
Table of Contents 

    

§ 205.501(a)(20) 
Demonstrate its ability to comply with a State’s 
organic program to certify organic production or 
handling operations within the State. 
Table of Contents 

    

§ 205.501(a)(21) 
Comply with, implement, and carry out any other 
terms and conditions determined by the 
Administrator to be necessary. 
Table of Contents 

    

§ 205.501(b)(1) 
A private or governmental entity accredited as a 
certifier under this subpart may establish a seal, 
logo, or other identifying mark to be used by 
production and handling operations certified by the 
certifier to indicate affiliation with the certifier. 
Provided, That, the certifier: 
 
Does not require use of its seal, logo, or other 
identifying mark on any product sold, labeled, or 
represented as organically produced as a condition 
of certification. 
Table of Contents 
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§ 205.670(d) 
Were at least 5% of certified operations sampled and 
tested on an annual basis (or at least one operation 
annually if certifier has fewer than thirty 
operations)? 
Table 7a 
Table of contents 

   

Yes – as 
documented on 
Table 7a, at least 
5% of the certified 
operations were 
sampled and tested 
on an annual basis. 
or 
Yes – as 
documented on 
Table 7a, at least 
one certified 
operation was 
sampled and tested 
annually because 
the certifier has 
fewer than thirty 
operations. 
 
No – as 
documented on 
Table 7a, at least 
5% of the certified 
operations were not 
sampled and tested 
on an annual basis. 
or 
No – as 
documented on 
Table 7a, the 
certifier has fewer 
than thirty 
operations and did 
not sample and test 
from at least one 
certified operation 
annually. 

§ 205.670(e) 
Are samples collected by an inspector representing 
the certifier, State, or Administrator as applicable? 
Table 7b A 
Table of contents    

Yes – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, samples 
were collected by 
an inspector 
representing the 
certifier, State, or 
Administrator as 
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applicable. 
 
No – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, not all 
samples were 
collected by an 
inspector 
representing the 
certifier, State, or 
Administrator as 
applicable. 

§ 205.670(e) 
Is chain of custody maintained? 
Table 7b C 
Table of contents 

   

Yes – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, chain of 
custody was 
maintained. 
 
No – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, chain of 
custody was not 
maintained for all 
samples. 

§ 205.670(e) 
Is the sample submitted to an ISO 17025 accredited 
lab? 
Table 7b D 
Table of contents 
 
Or 
an alternate standard approved by the NOP? 
NOP 2611 – Table 7b D 

   

Yes – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, samples 
were submitted to 
an accredited or 
NOP-approved lab. 
 
No – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, not all 
samples were 
submitted to an 
accredited or NOP-
approved lab. 

§ 205.670(e) 
Is the sample tested in accordance with the methods 
described in the most current edition of the Official 
Methods of Analysis of the AOAC  
International or other current applicable validated 
methodology? 
Table 7b E 

   

Yes – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, samples 
were tested in 
accordance with an 
approved AOAC or 
other validated 
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Table of contents methodology. 
 
No – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, not all 
samples were tested 
in accordance with 
an approved AOAC 
or other validated 
methodology. 

§§ 205.670(f) 
Are test results available for public access, unless 
the testing is part of an ongoing compliance 
investigation? 
Table of contents 

    

§§ 205.402(b)(3) and 205.403(e)(2) 
Is a copy of the test results provided to the applicant 
or certified operation? 
Table 7b F 
Table of Contents (§ 205.402) or Table of Contents 
(§ 205.403) 

   

Yes – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, a copy of 
the test results was 
provided to the 
applicants and/or 
certified operations. 
 
No – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, copies of 
test results were not 
provided to all 
applicants and/or 
certified operations. 

§ 205.670(g) 
If test results indicate a specific agricultural product 
contains pesticide residues or environmental 
contaminants that exceed the FDA’s or EPA’s 
regulatory tolerance, did the certifier promptly 
report such data to the applicable agency whose 
regulatory tolerance or action level was exceeded? 
(Test results that exceed federal regulatory 
tolerances must also be reported to the appropriate 
State health agency or foreign equivalent.) 
Table 7b I and J 
Table of contents 

   

Yes – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, test 
results that 
exceeded the 
FDA’s or EPA’s 
regulatory tolerance 
were promptly 
reported to the 
applicable agency 
and the appropriate 
State health agency 
whose regulatory 
tolerance or action 
level was exceeded. 
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No – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, not all 
test results that 
exceeded the 
FDA’s or EPA’s 
regulatory tolerance 
were promptly 
reported to the 
applicable agency 
or appropriate State 
health agency 
whose regulatory 
tolerance or action 
level was exceeded. 
 
N/A – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, there 
were no test results 
that exceeded the 
FDA’s or EPA’s 
regulatory 
tolerance. 

§ 205.671 
Is there a prohibited substance detected that is 
greater than 5% of the EPA tolerance for the residue 
or greater than the unavoidable residual 
environmental contamination (UREC) level and is 
the product allowed to be represented as organic? 
Table 7b K 
Table of Contents  

   

Yes (ACA does not 
comply) – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, when test 
results verified 
there was a 
prohibited 
substance detected 
that was greater 
than 5% of the EPA 
tolerance or greater 
than the UREC 
level, the product 
was allowed to be 
represented as 
organic. 
 
No (ACA 
Complies) – as 
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
was not allowed to 
be represented as 
organic. 
 
N/A – as 
documented on 
Table 7b, there 
were no test results 
where a prohibited 
substance was 
detected that was 
greater than 5% of 
the EPA tolerance 
or greater than the 
UREC level. 

§ 205.671 
Are investigations conducted to determine the cause 
of the prohibited substance? 
Table 7b P 
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If the certifier has issued any TM-11 Export 
Certificates, are they on the NOP’s list of certifiers 
approved to issue a certificate under an export 
arrangement? 
§ 205.501(a)(21) 
Table of Contents 

    

Were all TM-11 Export Certificates issued only to 
U.S. certified operations selling and/or shipping to 
Taiwan? 
Table of Contents 

    

Are the certifier and applicable staff aware of the 
requirements for exporting to Taiwan? Program 
requirements can be accessed on the NOP Web site. 
Table of Contents 

    

Does the certifier have a system in place to review 
and verify the terms of the arrangement? 
Table of Contents 

    

Did the certifier incorporate the compliance 
requirements of the applicable export arrangement 
into its quality manual under the heading 
“Requirements for export of U.S. organic raw and 
processed agricultural products to (insert country 
name)?” 
Table of Contents 

    

Did the certifier assign a unique identification 
number to each export certificate? The unique 
identification number must begin with an acronym 
designating the certifier and the country code for the 
specific export arrangement. 
List of certifiers 
Table of Contents 

    

Does the certifier keep a paper-based or electronic 
control log that records and tracks the disposition of 
each export certificate including those issued, 
voided, or destroyed? 
Table of Contents 

    

Did the certifier designate a staff person to authorize 
the issuance of the export certificate and attest to its 
authenticity by affixing his/her signature to the 
Certificate, as well as who is responsible for all 
aspects of the issuance of the export certificate, 
including ensuring security of blank export 
certificates and oversight of the control log? 
Table of Contents 
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Did all export certificates that were issued under the 
Taiwan arrangement for processed products and 
crops have the required statement, “Organic 
agricultural products and organic processed 
products, accompanied by this certificate, were 
produced or processed using zero prohibited 
substances”? 
Table of Contents 

    

Did all export certificates that were issued under the 
Taiwan arrangement for livestock and meat products 
have the required statement, “Organic livestock 
products accompanied by this certificate, were 
managed and produced without the use of systemic 
pain killers or analgesics, including the use of 
Lidocaine or Procaine?” 
Table of Contents 
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1. CLOSING MEETING 
 
The purpose of the closing meeting is to present the assessment findings and conclusions in such 
a manner that the client can understand and acknowledge them.   
 

 Sign out on the attendance list (see beginning of checklist). 
 Present positive aspects of the certification program. 

 Positive Aspect (1) – Very welcoming and understanding staff. Made our 
job of handling a short notice compliance audit very smooth. Thank you 
for being responsive and accomidating. 

 Positive Aspect (2) – CDA’s inspection audit forms are excellent 
resources for inspectors.  

 Positive Aspect (3) –  
 Present any items that require further guidance and consideration by the NOP. 

 Pending Item (1) – CDA’s corrective actions to previous NCs will be 
reviewed at the Renewal Audit later this year – 2017, when a complete 
audit will also be preformed.  

 Pending Item (2) –  
 Present the assessment findings and conclusions in a manner so they are 

understood and acknowledged by the auditee. For each finding, cite the specific 
requirement of the assessment criteria and allow the auditee to ask questions on 
any findings. 

 Discuss the next steps in the process:  
1) The report is written and sent to the NOP for review. 
2) The NOP reviews the report and determines the compliance / 

noncompliance of the program and makes all decisions concerning the 
accreditation. The NOP has the discretion to modify the assessment 
findings.  

3) The report is issued to the client by the NOP. 
 Provide information about the NOP appeals process (§ 205.681(b)).   
 Encourage feedback. Clients can submit feedback to AIAInBox@ams.usda.gov.  

Provide the certifier with the NOP Auditor Evaluation form to complete. 

  
2. FINDINGS: Findings must be in NC report format prior to the auditor submitting the 

checklist to the NOP.  
 
Table of Contents Table 1 Table 2 Table 3 Table 4 Table 5 Table 6a Table 6b Table 6c Table 7a 
Table 7b Table 8 
 

a. Noncompliances issued prior to this audit – Cleared (or remain Outstanding) 
 

Corrective actions for previous noncompliances were not verified during 
the Compliance Audit.  
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b. Findings identified during current audit 
 

 
NP7162PZA.F1 - 7 C.F.R. §205.670(d) states, “A certifying agent must, on an annual basis, 
sample and test from a minimum of five percent of the operations it certifies, rounded to the 
nearest whole number. A certifying agent that certifies fewer than thirty operations on an annual 
basis must sample and test from at least one operation annually…” 
Comments: CDA did not conduct residue sample testing of at least 5% of the total operations in 
2016.  
 
Auditor Observations: CDA did not conduct residue sampling from the Witness Audit 
conducted during the Compliance Audit.  
  
NP7162PZA.F2 – 7 C.F.R. §205.662 (e)(1) states,  “If the operation fails to correct the 
noncompliance, to resolve the issue through rebuttal or mediation, or to file an appeal of the 
proposed suspension …, the certifying agent ... shall send the certified operation a written 
notification of suspension ….” 
Comments: CDA accepted corrective actions from one operation it had issued a Notice of 
Proposed Suspension to in 2016. CDA also allowed three operations to voluntarily surrender 
after being issued a Notice of Proposed Suspension.  
  
NP7162PZA.F3 – 7 C.F.R. §205.663 states, “Any dispute with respect to denial of certification 
or proposed suspension or revocation of certification under this part may be mediated at the 
request of the applicant for certification or certified operation and with acceptance by the 
certifying agent. Mediation shall be requested in writing to the applicable certifying agent.” 
Comments: CDA issued a settlement agreement with an operation they had sent a Notice of 
Proposed Suspension, without the operation first requesting mediation in writing, or conducting 
mediation.  
  
NP7162PZA.F4 – 7 C.F.R. §205. 402(a)(2) states, “Determine by a review of the application 
materials whether the applicant appears to comply or may be able to comply with the applicable 
requirements of subpart C of this part;...” §205.206(e) states that an Organic System Plan must 
include, “Additional information deemed necessary by the certifying agent to evaluate 
compliance with the regulations.” 
Comments:  The witness audit file reviewed by the auditors, contains a list of previsously 
approved materials. CDA does not note if the material is approved or note when the review was 
conducted. Therefore, CDA cannot determine when a product is up for re-review. 
 
Auditor Observations: While reviewing the C&C file, a new electrolyte was asked for at IR and 
inspector said it was submitted, and it was added to the material list. There was no indication it 
was evaluated by CDA. The pending material review was not communicated to the operation at 
final review. The electrolyte currently being used was not on the current 2016 materials list, but 
was found in the 2015 file. No issues were listed in the exit interview. 
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NP7162PZA.F5 – 7 C.F.R. §205.501(a)(21) states, “A private or governmental entity accredited 
as a certifying agent under this subpart must:…”  Comply with, implement, and carry out any 
other terms and conditions determined by the Administrator to be necessary.” NOP 2027, 
“Personnel Performance Evaluation,” Section 3.2b states, “Inspectors should be evaluated during 
an onsite inspection by a supervisor or peer (another inspector) at least annually.” 
Comments: CDA did not conduct field evaluations of all inspectors in 2016. Seven of the twelve 
inspectors received field evaluations.  
   
NP7162PZA.F6 – 7 C.F.R. §205.403(d) states, “The inspector must conduct an exit interview 
with an authorized representative of the operation who is knowledgeable about the inspected 
operation to confirm the accuracy and completeness of inspection observations and information 
gathered during the on-site inspection.  The inspector must also address the need for any 
additional information as well as any issues of concern.” 
Comments: During the witness audit the inspectors did not note items of concern and additional 
information requested of the operation in the exit interview. 
 
NP7162PZA.F7 – 7 C.F.R. §205.501(a)(21) states, “A private or governmental entity accredited 
as a certifying agent under this subpart must:…  Comply with, implement, and carry out any 
other terms and conditions determined by the Administrator to be necessary.”  NOP 2601 states, 
“Operations must also notify its certifier of any ongoing changes that may affect its compliance 
with the regulations. If an operation plans to add new products, fields, operations, or labels to its 
OSP, then the certifier must first approve these changes and issue an updated certificate. A 
request to add new fields, animal species, or facilities would require an additional onsite 
inspection.” 
Comments: A CDA inspector conducted the inspection of a new facility to be added to a 
certified operation’s certification, however, an inspection report was not processed or reviewed 
by CDA and a decision was not issued to the certified operation.   
 
NP7162PZA.F8 – 7 C.F.R. §205.403(b)(2) states,  “All on-site inspections must be conducted 
when an authorized representative of the operation who is knowledgeable about the operation is 
present and at a time when land, facilities, and activities that demonstrate the operation's 
compliance with or capability to comply with the applicable provisions of subpart C of this part 
can be observed, except that this requirement does not apply to unannounced on-site inspections. 
Comments:  CDA conducted the annual inspection of a dairy operation during the non-grazing 
season. 
 

3. OBSERVATIONS 
 

In this section, the auditor may insert comments and/or remarks on any part of the audit 
that will assist the reviewers in determining certifier compliance. The auditor may also 
use this section to ask for clarification on specific issues identified during the audit. 
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REMINDER: This completed NOP 2005 checklist must be submitted to AIA within 30 days of 
the audit completion. 
 
Back to Closing Meeting process 
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From: Zuck, Penelope - AMS
To: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS
Subject: RE: CDA reports
Date: Friday, June 16, 2017 2:56:56 PM
Attachments: image002.png

NP7162PZA NOP 2005-6 Audit Review AOF HP CDA 061617 pz.docx

Hi Rebecca,
The checklist refers to attached Grazing Season Ration Workbooks, but I did not review them. 

 
If you plug your iphone into your computer, you can save the photos directly to the “photos”
folder on your computer.  Just go to your ‘computer’ and you will be able to choose the
iphone.  It should prompt you through the process, but let me know if you need more
instructions.
 
Penny
 

PENNY ZUCK | USDA-NaTIONaL ORGaNIC PROGRaM | ACCREdITaTION MaNaGER| 
USDA ▪ AMS ▪ NOP | 1400 Independence Ave SW | 2649-S | Washington DC 20250
( 202.260.9444 | Fax 202.205.7808 | Cell  | * Penelope.Zuck@ams.usda.gov
Subscribe to the Organic Insider
 

From: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS 
Sent: Friday, June 16, 2017 2:01 PM
To: Zuck, Penelope - AMS <Penelope.Zuck@ams.usda.gov>
Subject: RE: CDA reports
 
Hi Penny,
Here is the Review Audit report. I added the grazing season ration workbooks to the folder too for
reference. I have photos to include, but can’t seem to figure out how to email them from my iPhone
(I’m not an iUser person).
P:\AIA\ACA-Active\CDA-CO\Compliance\2017\Aurora Dairy\2017 Compliance
Audit\Checklists\NP7162PZA NOP 2005-6 Audit Review AOF HP CDA 061617.docx
Thanks lots for your input.
Rebecca
 

From: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS 
Sent: Friday, June 16, 2017 9:18 AM
To: Zuck, Penelope - AMS <Penelope.Zuck@ams.usda.gov>
Subject: CDA reports

(

 

(b) (6)

(b) (5)



 
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
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Livestock living conditions (7 CFR § 205.239) 
Each of the parlors has connecting free stall barns that include a covered area for feeding 
and loafing which is bedded with sand. The barns also have uncovered areas with access to 
direct sun and dirt. The lactating cows are brought in from the fields for milking, and are fed 
their TMR in the free stall barn area before being sent back out to the pasture. All pastures have 
water tanks. On hot days AOF will bring the herd back into the barns by 10-11am and let them 
back out on pasture around 4-5pm to graze overnight.  
Calves are housed in individual calf hutches, and are moved to a group pen when older. AOF is 
experimenting with connectingon two hutches so the calves can socialize at an earlier age.  
 
 

(b) (4)
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Pasture Practice Standard (7 CFR § 205.240) 
Livestock graze for five months May through September. AOF may change the rations on a 
daily basis for the lactating cows based on the DMD. The DMD may change throughout the 
season based on milk production and exercise. AOF analyses the milk (DHIA records) and if the 
average amount of milk being produced changes then AOF adjusts the ration for the cows as 
needed.  
 
During the witness audit the inspectors and auditors collected feed data for the 2016 grazing 
season. This data was used in the attached Grazing Season Ration Workbooks to calculate the 
weighted DMI from pasture for the lactating group and the dry cow group by month.  
 
Example of monthly DMI from pasture calculation: 
July 2016 
DMD = 58[ZP-A1] 
Days grazed = 15 
Avg. # of cows =  
Total lbs of DM fed = 6,548,047 
 
6,548,047 lbs DM /  cows = 564.68 lbs DM/cow 
564.68 lbs DM/cow / 15 days = 37.65 lbs DM/cow/day 
58 DMD – 37.65 lbs DM fed/cow/day = 20.35 lbs DM from pasture/cow/day 
20.35 lbs DM from pasture/cow/day / 58 DMD = 0.35 X 100 = 35% DMI from pasture 
 
The attached Grazing Season Ration Workbooks calculate the DMI from pasture for each month 
and provide a weighted DMI from pasture over the grazing season for each group.  
In 2016 the lactating cows had a DMI from pasture of 34.54% and were grazed for 123 days. 
In 2016 the dry cows had a DMI from pasture of 39.86% and were grazed for 128 days. 
According to these records both groups of animals met the minimum pasture rule requirements 
in 2016.  
 
AOF logs daily grazing on maps and provides an annual summary sheet to CDA noting the 
number of days grazed each month and the average DMI from pasture for each month for each 
group of livestock.  
 
Lactating Cows days grazed in 2016:                          
May – 24                                                                      
June – 30                                                                      
July – 15                                                                       
August – 31                                                                  
September – 23                                                            
Grazing began May 5, 2016. Three other days were not grazed in May because it was 
determined to be too wet on May 8, 17, and 18 (allowance via §205.239(b)(4)). All of June was 
grazed. July 9-24th the dairy cows were off pasture for regrowth and reseeding due to the spring 
cool season grasses tapering off as the warm season grasses were coming on (allowance via 
NOP Guidance 5017-1 Section 4.1). All of August was grazed. The cows were removed from 
pasture September 23, 2016 for fall seeding purposes.  

(b) (4)

(b) (4)













From: McEvoy, Miles - AMS
To: Bradley, Mark - AMS
Cc: Tucker, Jennifer - AMS; Gebault King, ReneeA - AMS; Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS
Subject: FW: CDA Audit reports
Date: Saturday, June 17, 2017 6:35:48 AM
Attachments: Pasture and grazing requirements.docx

Mark –
As we discussed yesterday, please start development of a pasture and grazing webinar. A draft
outline is attached. Please provide a first draft by the end of June. Work with Jenny and Renee to
story board the webinar. Rebecca can provide additional details about the Aurora and CDA audit.
Thanks.
 
Miles
 

From: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS 
Sent: Friday, June 16, 2017 3:36 PM
To: McEvoy, Miles - AMS <Miles.McEvoy@ams.usda.gov>; Courtney, Cheri - AMS
<Cheri.Courtney@ams.usda.gov>; Crail, Lars - AMS <Lars.Crail@ams.usda.gov>
Cc: Zuck, Penelope - AMS <Penelope.Zuck@ams.usda.gov>
Subject: CDA Audit reports
 
Hello Miles, Cheri and Lars,
 
I saved the CDA compliance audit reports to the P drive. There are additional grazing season ration
workbooks saved there too. I am working on saving some pictures to the folder as well. The transfer
is taking a while but I will keep working on it.
In the 2017 Compliance Folder the following documents are available: P:\AIA\ACA-Active\CDA-
CO\Compliance\2017\Aurora Dairy\2017 Compliance Audit\Checklists

-          NP7162PZA  2005-4 Witness Audit AOF HP CDA 061617
-          NP7162PZA NOP 2005-6 Audit Review AOF HP CDA 061617
-          NP7162PZA NOP 2005 Checklist 061617
-          Grazing Season Ration Workbook 2016 Lactating cows
-          Grazing Season Ration Workbook 2016 Dry cows

 
Please let me know if you have any question.
Safe travels to you all this weekend.
 
Thanks,
 
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
Subject: maps Aurora HP
Date: Friday, June 23, 2017 6:39:37 PM
Attachments: IMG 0131.JPG

IMG 0132.JPG
IMG 0133.JPG
IMG 0134.JPG
IMG 0135.JPG
IMG 0136.JPG
IMG 0137.JPG
IMG 0138.JPG
IMG 0139.JPG
IMG 0140.JPG
IMG 0141.JPG
IMG 0142.JPG

 
 
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
Subject: AOF OSP
Date: Thursday, June 29, 2017 11:34:09 AM

Mark,
Here is the link to the AOF High Plains OSP. The Platteville OSP is in this folder too, but the High
Plains files begin with HP.
P:\AIA\ACA-Active\CDA-CO\Compliance\2017\Aurora Dairy\Renewal
 
Link to the feed/pasture docs collected at AOF. I scanned them rather than take pictures.
P:\AIA\ACA-Active\CDA-CO\Compliance\2017\Aurora Dairy\2017 Compliance Audit\Docs collected
at AOF
 
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



From: Courtney, Cheri - AMS
To: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS
Subject: RE: update and re-cap
Date: Friday, June 30, 2017 8:18:35 PM

Hi Rebecca,
Thank you for the update and being acting for 2 weeks, I know it is a lot of work in addition to
completing you own work.

 and we can touch base when I return.
Thanks again,
Cheri
 

From: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS 
Sent: Friday, June 30, 2017 6:17 PM
To: Courtney, Cheri - AMS <Cheri.Courtney@ams.usda.gov>
Subject: update and re-cap
 
Hi Cheri,
I hope the trip has gone well. It has been a busy 2 weeks here, as I’m sure you already know. I just
wanted to give you a heads up on where some things are. I will also forward you some emails for
back ground.
 

(b) (6)

(b) (5)



 
The rest of my work was general AM stuff, meetings, audit planning, audit clean up, answering email
questions and such. Let me know if you want to discuss anything further. The AC meeting process
may be good to touch base on when you return. Please let me know if there is anything else I can do
or if you have any questions.
 
Have a terrific holiday!
 
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



From: Nally Yanessa, Shannon - AMS
To: Courtney, Cheri - AMS
Subject: AOD OSP/audit report
Date: Wednesday, July 12, 2017 4:34:43 PM

Hi Cheri,
 
When you have a chance, can you send the Aurora OSP and audit report(s)?  Also, who is the lead on
this, in case we have questions.
 
Thanks!
Shannon
 
Shannon Nally Yanessa
Assistant Director, Standards Division
National Organic Program
U.S. Department of Agriculture
(202) 260-9285 (direct)
 



From: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS
To: McEvoy, Miles - AMS; Bradley, Mark - AMS
Cc: Davis, Graham - AMS
Subject: RE: Aurora High Plains NONC
Date: Monday, July 3, 2017 12:55:36 PM

Hi Mark,
I made some edits to the AOF NoNC. Feel free to take them or leave them. I did not change the
format to match AIA notices of noncompliance, but if that is needed just let me know. Happy to chat
about any of the comments too.
 
Nice work!
Thanks lots,
Rebecca
 

From: McEvoy, Miles - AMS 
Sent: Friday, June 30, 2017 12:40 PM
To: Bradley, Mark - AMS <Mark.Bradley@ams.usda.gov>
Cc: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS <Rebecca.E.Claypool@ams.usda.gov>; Davis, Graham - AMS
<Graham.Davis@ams.usda.gov>
Subject: RE: Aurora High Plains NONC
 
Thanks Mark. We’ll take it from here.
 

From: Bradley, Mark - AMS 
Sent: Friday, June 30, 2017 3:19 PM
To: McEvoy, Miles - AMS <Miles.McEvoy@ams.usda.gov>
Cc: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS <Rebecca.E.Claypool@ams.usda.gov>; Davis, Graham - AMS
<Graham.Davis@ams.usda.gov>
Subject: Aurora High Plains NONC
 
Miles/Rebecca –
 
As discussed, here is a link to the draft notice of noncompliance for Aurora High Plains.  Letter is
addressed to  as their notified contact in .  That may need to change. 
Graham is their NOP point of contact for the response.  Response is to be sent to NOP office or to
the NOPACAADVERSEACTIONS inbox. 
 
P:\AIA\ACA-Active\CDA-CO\Compliance\2017\Aurora Dairy\2017 Compliance Audit\NONC Aurora
High Plains 063017.docx
 
There were 4 noncompliances identified to 3 sections of the regulations.

·         Incorrectly calculating dry matter because they didn’t include all of the days in the grazing
season calculation.

·         Not grazing all ruminant livestock during the entire grazing season for the geographic
region. 

(b) (4)(b) (6)



Mark A. Bradley | Assistant to the Deputy Administrator | 202.690.0725 | FAX 202.205.7808  | Cell

USDA – AMS – NATIONAL ORGANIC PROGRAM | 1400 Independence Ave. SW | Washington, DC
20250

Become an NOP Insider

·         Failing to provide pasture of sufficient quality and quantity of pasture throughout the
grazing season., and

·         Failing to manage all ruminant livestock on pasture and provide daily grazing throughout the
grazing season.

 
I wrote the narrative descriptions based on the onsite reports.  Rebecca, if you can read this through
closely to make sure I got it right, that would be very helpful.
 

.  This may be out the door before I get back
 
Thanks, and have a great weekend!
 
Mark
 

 
 
 

(b) (6)

(b) (6), (j)(2



From: McEvoy, Miles - AMS
To: Scott McGinty
Cc: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS
Subject: AOD findings
Date: Wednesday, July 5, 2017 10:31:17 AM

Dear Mr. McGinty,
 
There are findings that were identified based on the June 7-8, 20178 organic compliance audit.
These findings will be provided to you tomorrow in the form of an exit interview. Please share with
others attending the meeting.
 
Miles McEvoy
Deputy Administrator
National Organic Program
 



1

Gorsage, JoAnna (CTR) - AMS

From: McEvoy, Miles - AMS </O=MMS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP 
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MCEVOY, MILES19F09CBD-
BE7F-4909-8DAA-6F3FA5E2BC08>

Sent: Wednesday, July 5, 2017 12:53 PM
To: Claypool, Rebecca E - AMS; Rakola, Betsy - AMS
Subject: FW: Aurora dairy
Attachments: Aurora dairy.msg

 



From: Crail, Lars - AMS
To: Davis, Graham - AMS
Cc: Zuck, Penelope - AMS
Subject: RE: upcoming CDA audit
Date: Saturday, July 8, 2017 8:57:18 AM

Graham,  See my responses below.
 
Lars
 
From: Davis, Graham - AMS 
Sent: Friday, July 7, 2017 1:55 PM
To: Crail, Lars - AMS <Lars.Crail@ams.usda.gov>
Cc: Zuck, Penelope - AMS <Penelope.Zuck@ams.usda.gov>
Subject: upcoming CDA audit
 
Lars,
 
I have two questions regarding the upcoming CDA renewal audit?
 

 
Thanks.
 
Graham
 
Graham Davis
Accreditation Manager 
USDA | NATIONAL ORGANIC PROGRAM
1400 Independence Ave SW| 2649-S | Washington DC 20250
Desk: 202-692-0047 | Cell: 

 
Want to receive email updates? Subscribe to the Organic Insider
 
 

(b) (6)

(b) (5)



From: Atkins, Patricia - AMS
To: Davis, Graham - AMS
Subject: RE: On going complaints
Date: Monday, July 10, 2017 4:10:42 PM

C&E has one open case against Aurora High Plains Dairy (NOPC-253-17), submitted by Cornucopia
Institute on May12, 2017.
 

From: Davis, Graham - AMS 
Sent: Monday, July 10, 2017 3:14 PM
To: Atkins, Patricia - AMS <Patricia.Atkins@ams.usda.gov>
Subject: On going complaints
 
Good afternoon Patricia,
 
I am gathering information for an upcoming audit. Could you tell me if there are any ongoing
complaints in progress with operations certified by Colorado Department of Agriculture?
 
Thank you.
 
 
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
To: McEvoy, Miles - AMS
Subject: NONC for Aurora
Date: Wednesday, July 12, 2017 2:12:16 PM

Miles –

We document it, they fix it, and the regulations have been met.
Thanks,
Mark

(b) (5)



From: Zuck, Penelope - AMS
To: Davis, Graham - AMS
Subject: CDA audit
Date: Tuesday, August 1, 2017 10:37:17 AM
Attachments: NP7219PZA Checklist CDA Broomfield CO.doc

image001.png

Hi Graham,
Attached is the checklist for the CDA audit next week.  I listed your assigned tasks in the checklist
following the Findings Section.  Let me know if you have any questions.  I downloaded all the files
submitted from CDA on the p drive for now:
P:\AIA\ACA-Active\CDA-CO\2017 Renewal\Submitted Docs
 
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
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NOP 2005 NOP Accreditation Assessment Checklist Rev08 Authorized Distribution: Public 

 

1. PLANNING AND SCHEDULING OF THE ASSESSMENT  
 
 Contact the NOP Accreditation and International Activities (AIA) Division Accreditation Manager and determine the scope of the 

assessment and the onsite assessment plan. 
 
 Send an email using the appropriate template to schedule the onsite assessment. This should be done as early as possible. Planning 

of foreign assessments should start at least 6 months before the anticipated assessment date. Scheduling of domestic assessments 
should start no later than 3 months before the anticipated assessment date. 

 
 Once the assessment date is scheduled with the accredited certifying agent (certifier), select the satellite office(s) and witness audit 

site(s) to be visited during the assessment. Check the AIA database and/or previous audit checklists for operations where witness 
inspections and review audits took place to avoid visiting the same operations. 

 
 After the assessment sites and onsite schedule have been finalized, complete the audit plan, cost estimate, and appropriate letter 

regarding the assessment. Send these documents to the NOP Lead Auditor for review and approval. 
 
 Send the above information via email using the appropriate template. Remember to include attachments in the email and copy all 

of the personnel listed on the letter. 
 

2. PRE-ASSESSMENT ACTIVITIES 
 
 Verify that the LPS-109 Application for Service is on file and is the current version. This does not apply to the pre-decisional 

assessment. 
 

 Verify that form TM-10CG Application for Accreditation is on file and is the current version. This applies to initial and renewal 
applications only.  

 
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
 Receive approval to conduct the assessment activity by obtaining a signed copy of the audit plan and cost estimate from the client.

Audit Schedule:  
Date Day Location Hour

s 
Review Activity Participants Lodging 

Aug 7, 
2017 

Mon • Depart
Washington

• Broomfield,
CO

20 • Travel from DC to CO – UA403(IAD →DEN)
Depart: 08:33, Arrive: 10:24

• Drive to Broomfield, CO
• Opening Meeting – 1:00 PM

NOP:  Graham 
Davis / Penny 
Zuck 

Aloft Broomfield/Denver 
8300 Arista Place 
Broomfield, Co 80021 
303.635.2000 
$178/$69 

Aug 8, 
2017 

Tues • Broomfield,
CO

• Greeley, CO

16 • Conduct Office Audit
• Witness Audit Crops/Handling – Hungenberg

Produce, Inc. – 8 AM

NOP:  Graham 
Davis / Penny 
Zuck 

Aloft Broomfield/Denver 
8300 Arista Place 
Broomfield, Co 80021 
303.635.2000 

Aug 9, 
2017 

Wed • Fort Lupton,
CO

• Longmont,
CO

16 • Witness Audit Livestock/Handling - Colorado
Egg

• Witness Audit Processing – Madhava Honey

NOP:  Graham 
Davis / Penny 
Zuck 

Aloft Broomfield/Denver 
8300 Arista Place 
Broomfield, Co 80021 
303.635.2000 

Aug 10, 
2017 

Thurs • CDA Office
Broomfield,
CO

16 • Continue Office Audit
• Closing Meeting - PM

NOP:  Graham 
Davis / Penny 
Zuck 

Aloft Broomfield/Denver 
8300 Arista Place 
Broomfield, Co 80021 
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303.635.2000 

Aug 11, 
2017 

Fri • Travel from 
CO to DC 

12 • Travel from CO to DC – UA712 (IAD →DEN) 
Depart: 11:05, Arrive: 16:25  

NOP:  Graham 
Davis / Penny 
Zuck  

NA 
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3. ONSITE ASSESSMENT ACTIVITIES 
 

Opening Meeting 
 

The purpose of the opening meeting is to confirm the assessment plan, provide a short summary of how the assessment 
activities will take place, confirm communication channels, and provide an opportunity for the client to ask questions.   

 
 Introduction of participants and their roles. 

 
 Confirmation of assessment objectives, scope, and criteria. 

 
 Confirmation of assessment timetable and any other relevant arrangement.   
 
 Review the assessment plan. Have there been any changes since it was approved? 

 No   
 Yes - What are the changes? 

 
 Review the program documentation. Have there been any changes since the last assessment? 

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
 
 Confirmation that auditee will be kept informed of assessment process during the assessment. 
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From Engagement Letter: 
In order to be properly prepared for the assessment, please ensure that the following documents are available for review when we 
arrive to the CDA office:   
 

1. Procedures and checklist or form (if one is used) for how labels are reviewed and approved. 
2. Procedures and checklist or form (if one is used) for how inputs, processing aids, and materials are reviewed and approved. 
3. A list and the files of operations that surrendered their USDA organic certification. 
4. A list of all samples that were collected to verify compliance to the standards since the previous assessment.  The list should 

indicate: sample date; operation; item(s) sampled; reason for sampling; test results; and actions taken by STEL and the 
operations. 

5. A list and the files where the operations were denied certification since the previous onsite assessment. 
6. Files where the operations were issued a notice of proposed suspension and a list of the operations (if any) that were issued a 

notice of proposed suspension since the previous onsite assessment. 
7. Files where the operations were issued a notice of proposed revocation and a list of the operations (if any) that were issued a 

notice of proposed revocation since the previous onsite assessment. 
8. Files where operations were issued a notice of suspension or revocation and a list of operations (if any) that were issued a 

notice of suspension or revocation since the previous onsite assessment. 
9. A list of complaints received about certified operations and their files.  Include in the list how many investigations have been 

conducted since the previous onsite assessment and the outcome. 
10. A list and information on any willful violations of the USDA organic regulations (if any) and the actions taken by CDA. 
11. A list of operations and their files where the operations rebutted a notice of noncompliance and the follow-up actions taken by 

CDA. 
12. A list of operations and their files where the operations requested mediation or appealed a certification decision and the results. 



























  
United States Department of Agriculture 1400 Independence Avenue SW. NOP 2005 
Agricultural Marketing Service Room 2648 South Building Effective Date: 10/29/2015 
National Organic Program Washington, DC  20250 Page 26 of 175 

 

 
NOP 2005 NOP Accreditation Assessment Checklist Rev08 Authorized Distribution: Public 

CERTIFIER OVERVIEW NARRATIVE: 
 
 
The Colorado Department of Agriculture (CDA) organic program is a state government certification program based in Broomfield, 
CO. It was initially accredited as a certifying agent by the USDA National Organic Program (NOP) on October 15, 2002. At the time 
of the audit, CDA provided organic certification for 287 operations in Colorado or contiguous land areas: crops (159), wild crops (1), 
livestock (16) and handling (111). The CDA is not currently accepting new clients for certification due to a moratorium imposed by 
the Colorado legislature. The moratorium was imposed because the legislature determined that the organic program resources 
(staffing) was at maximum capacity given its current client numbers and budget. There are no satellite offices, although staff 
inspectors (12) are distributed throughout the state and perform inspections for multiple CDA programs. The CDA organic program is 
administered by the Organic Program Manager with the assistance of an Organic Certification Specialist. The program is overseen by 
the Division Director of the CDA. 
 
Current Accreditation –  
Type of Audit - 
Witness Audits -  
 










































